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(The meeting was called to order at 

6:00 p.m.)

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Call the meeting to order 

with the Pledge to the Flag.  

(All stood for the Pledge of Allegiance) 

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Please remain standing for 

a moment of silence for Susan Jane Corazzini, 

Regina A. DeDuck, Eleanor Kinscherf, Wes 

Ruroede, Harvey E. Strange, Jr. and Branden P. 

Sutherland.  

(All stood for the Pledge of Allegiance)  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Thank you.  You may be 

seated.  

Okay.  I've got a couple of announcements.  

The Parade of Lights festivities and annual Tree 

Lighting ceremony will be held on December 2nd, 

beginning at 5:00 p.m., with a rain date of 

December 3rd.  

Just to inform everybody, we're trying 

something a little different this year.  Instead 

of doing the tree lighting on Saturday and the 

Christmas parade on Sunday, we're combining the 

two events to try to make it a bigger family 

oriented event.  So, hopefully, everybody can 

come.  The normal Christmas parade that normally 
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was at 1:00 on Sunday is going to be that 

evening.  

We're going to have a lot of stuff down at 

Mitchell Park.  Peconic Landing has donated some 

cookies and hot chocolate and stuff, so we got 

some fun stuff going on.  The carolers from the 

school will be there, the school kids, to sing, 

we're doing a tree lighting, combination of 

everything.  

So just so everybody realizes, people that 

are watching, the public, you know, we're not 

doing everything on two separate days, it's all 

at one time, a big family event.  

Okay.  There will be a Historic 

Preservation Grant Workshop on December 4th at 

the Old Schoolhouse, following the HPC Meeting 

at 5 p.m. at the Old Schoolhouse.

The Village will be conducting smoke 

testing from 8 a.m. through noon on December 9th  

on Sterling Street and Sterling Avenue, and 

Carpenter Street to Main Street.  That's just 

testing our sewer lines and everything else.  

You may see a little smoke coming out of drains, 

or whatever.  They're trying to find leaks or 

infiltration from storm drains into the sewer 
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system.  So it's nothing to be alarmed about.  

We just want the public to be aware, if they see 

smoke coming from a storm drain, or whatever, 

it's -- there's not a fire, we're doing that on 

purpose.  

Also, Village Offices will be closed on 

December 25th in celebration of Christmas Day.  

That's all I have under announcements.  

We've got a public hearing.  The Wetlands 

Permit Application of Stephen Bull, 24 Beach 

Road, regarding an existing lO'xlO'x1O' shed on 

upland ground.  

We'll open up the public hearing.  If 

anybody would like to comment on it, your name 

and address for the record and -- 

MR. BULL:  I'm Stephen Bull, and I reside 

at 24 Sandy Beach, and I'm the person who's 

making the application.  I wanted to give you 

now just some extra packets that I made up to 

give you a little more information about the 

shed.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Okay.  Thank you.  

MR. BULL:  So I'll go through the packet 

in order, so that some -- there's some logic to 

my presentation.  
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The first thing about this particular 

shed, it is a shed.  And I want to talk to about 

its community aesthetic and how it fits as a 

shed within the local architecture and the lines 

of the rest of the community, so it doesn't 

stand out as something that would be 

unattractive and not working.  You could see the 

second house there on the block looks a lot like 

the shed in terms of its roof layout.  

The second image that you'll see is the 

items that are stored within the shed.  It is a 

shed, no more than a shed.  It's 10'x10'x10', 

and it's fully and compliant with the Greenport 

Code that allows an individual to build a shed 

without a permit in -- for this kind of purpose.  

There's no foundation, it's resting on the 

ground.  

In the next image, you'll see -- you'll 

see next to the shed two tall rods, it looks 

like rods next to the shed, but you'll see my 

hand in the foreground.  These are helical land 

anchors that are used most predominantly by the 

telephone poles -- the telephone company and the 

power company to hold all the telephones in 

place.  Each one of these has the strength to 
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hold 2,000 pounds.  

A concern that was expressed at the CAC 

meeting was that the shed might break loose 

because it was not attached, being a temporary 

structure, to the ground.  So, at that time, 

Paul Pallas attended that CAC interview, and I 

showed him these land screws that would be used 

to hold the shed in place, so that in case of a 

flood, the shed would not go rogue and cause 

damage in the community by floating around and 

off of its foundation.  

The next image you should see are three 

sheds.  It would be this image here.  These are 

three sheds that are in the Village of Greenport 

that are in -- in the neighborhood that were -- 

that are placed there without a wetlands permit, 

without a WLP permit.  They're of a more 

contemporary style than mine, but they are 

existing.  You could see on the third shed, you 

see that it's in a position very similar to mine 

that's in this upland area that's in the 

consideration of this application today.  So 

these are done without wetlands permits.  I went 

through the Building Department files on each 

one of these.  
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The next image you'll see is a -- the shed 

is nestled between two 40-year-old trees, and in 

this particular case, it's designed to keep the 

shed somewhat hidden from the other neighbors, 

so that it wouldn't be interfering with the 

landscape and the view that our neighbors had.  

So it was important to me that the shed would 

fit into the community that way.  

The next item you have is a written 

statement by a local builder that you may know, 

Steven Schroeder, who examined the cottage to 

find it safe and it -- you know, well 

constructed, and that in his opinion, the land 

anchors intended to fasten -- be fastened to the 

shed through the two-by-four studs would be 

sufficient to hold the shed onsite in the case 

of flooding.  So that's his statement, which is 

in your packet.  

Then I have support from my neighbors, my 

Sandy Beach neighbors, all of them who are in 

favor of the shed.  I have one letter here, 

you'll have a copy of that, which is from 

Marilyn Raines.  She's two doors to my west.  I 

have another letter of support from Donna 

Abrams.  She's at #2 Bay Road.  She's another 
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member of the Sandy Beach community.  Sandy 

Beach community is a community of 24, 25 

cottages and she's in one of them.  Then we have 

Mike Corso.  He concurs that the shed -- he's in 

favor of the shed.  I have another one here from 

25 Sandy Beach, and this is from Paul Elliot.  

He says, "I'm in favor of your shed at 24 Sandy 

Beach Road.  I have no problems with its 

existence."  Then I have another one from the 

newer neighbor, his name is P.J., and he's at 21 

Beach.  He's my neighbor.  Where Paul is my 

neighbor on the west, directly to -- my neighbor 

on the west, my eastern neighbor is P.J.  Then I 

have another letter of support from Ingrid 

Young, she's at #10 Sandy Beach, my cottage is 

again #24, and she's in support of the shed, she 

has no problem with it.  And then, finally, I 

have another supporting letter from Bob Moller, 

who's at #14 Sandy Beach.  

So that concludes my remarks with why I 

believe this shed is -- is viable.  

The CAC Committee has -- in their due 

diligence, has gone to visit the shed, and you 

have their report, and from the report, I 

believe their response has been very favorable 
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to the shed under the conditions that they have 

outlined, which I agree with.  

So I would ask that now you would hear 

from my Attorney, Pat Moore, who will review 

perhaps more of the legal side of this 

discussion.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Okay.  Thank you.  

MR. BULL:  Thank you.  

MS. MOORE:  Good evening.  Patricia Moore, 

on behalf of the applicant.  

The reason I had Mr. Bull present the 

beginning was that he actually had conducted a 

lot of the research, and I wanted him, as the 

one who had obtained all that information, to 

provide it as testimony for this Board.  

I -- from our previous wetland permit 

application, we identified certain parcels by 

their address, and they are -- there were 

structures, similar structures on Beach Road.  I 

actually pulled the property cards for each of 

those structures, and that's what I've just 

presented to you, are -- is a -- the first page 

is the outline of the tax map and the address.  

That was all documented in your application 

packet with photographs.  And in my review with 
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the attached property cards, what I was looking 

for was to corroborate Mr. Bull's investigation 

that these -- a lot of these accessory 

structures, certainly the sheds that are in 

existence, don't appear to have ever been 

required to get a building permit, and certainly 

don't have a wetland permit.  It just -- the 

application process was not required.  So I did 

want to corroborate his information and what was 

submitted to you previously in our packet.  

The second issue is compliance with the 

New York State Building Code.  I checked both 

with an architect, and we checked the State 

Building Code, and the State Building Code does 

not address accessory structures such as a shed.  

The Building Department has recommended, and CAC 

and Mr. Pallas has recommended those anchors, 

but it's merely to comply with your flood damage 

prevention provisions, so as to make sure that 

any structure sitting on land is secure and does 

not get separated from the land in the event 

that there's any flooding of the area.  That 

would be whether you had a boat or you had 

anything else, you want to make sure that it 

stays permanently affixed.  And the shed is 
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the -- with these anchors will be permanently 

affixed, and, in fact, protects what would 

otherwise be the storage that you saw in the 

shed being outside the shed and on the property.  

So it actually protects from flooding to have 

things in a shed, in a contained area, and that 

way you can avoid damage to property through -- 

due to flooding.  

In addition, even though it's -- I don't 

believe it's required, because under the storm 

-- the flood prevention, under the State Code, 

it -- again, sheds are really not -- they're 

generally not addressed, because it's not a 

habitable structure.  What -- the flood 

prevention is usually for habitable structures.  

Garages, sheds, parking areas, those are 

generally left to common sense.  

In this case, we actually added some flood 

vents to make it even more flood -- to allow for 

more flood protection.  So there has been 

additional protective means for this particular 

shed.  

It's a lot to talk about over a shed, but 

we seem to have to go there.  

Quite frankly, your wetland ordinance 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Flynn Stenography & Transcription Service

 (631) 727-1107

Regular Session 11/27/17  12

really had me perplexed, because generally 

wetland ordinances deal with setbacks from a 

wetland area.  It deals with docks and 

structures that are in the water or in wetlands.  

Your wetland ordinance includes the flood map.  

And it just doesn't seem to make sense, because 

you have a great deal of the Village of 

Greenport which is under a flood map, the FEMA 

standards, and you might have houses, and sheds, 

and garages, structures that are within a FEMA 

guideline, and your wetland ordinance doesn't 

seem to be applied that way.  

So I would question whether or not this 

process is even necessary.  But when I spoke to 

the Assistant Village Attorney, he said, "Oh, 

it's brought in due to the flood map."  Again, I 

think it requires a little review, because I 

don't believe that's the way that -- it's not 

the way it's been analyzed in the past, and it 

doesn't make sense.  Generally, you get wetland 

permits for structures that are either in 

wetlands or are within a certain adjacent area 

of a distance.  

The wetland ordinance that you have gives 

me no standards.  It's kind of -- that's why 
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we're kind of -- we're going above and beyond 

for our presentation, because the wetland 

ordinance has really very little guidance, and I 

think it welcomes some review.  That's for 

another day for the Board to consider.  

That is all I have at this moment, and if 

there are any comments, we will address them.  

Thank you.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  All right.  Thank you.  

Anybody from the public like to address this?  

Name and address for the record.  

MR. SALADINO:  John Saladino, Sixth 

Street.  You aren't going to review our code as 

the -- as the applicant's attorney suggested?  

You're not going to change our code tonight, are 

you?  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  No, we are not.  

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  No, I hope not.  

MR. SALADINO:  So I can -- so I can read 

from our code and -- 

MAYOR HUBBARD:  That's what's in existence 

right now, that's what we're working with.  

MR. SALADINO:  The first -- the first 

thing -- did I give my name and address?  I'm 

sorry.  John Saladino, Sixth Street.  
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MAYOR HUBBARD:  Yeah.  

MR. SALADINO:  The first thing I would 

like to address is the way the application is 

addressed on the agenda, an upland shed.  I 

don't believe it is upland.  I believe it is in 

the wetlands.  A letter from the DEC kind of 

confirmed that it was their jurisdiction.  The 

DEC takes jurisdiction over the wetlands -- 

MS. MOORE:  No.  

MR. SALADINO:  -- and not the upland 

portion -- and not the upland portion of the -- 

of the property.  

If you look at the survey, the property is 

zoned Coastal Zone A.  If you look at the survey 

again, you'll see that there is a line 

delineating moderate wave action, and actually 

goes through the middle of the applicant's 

house.  So to call it upland is, I think, 

misinformation.  

I'm not going to address our Chapter 68, 

you guys are all familiar with our chapter.  

The International Building Code was 

mentioned.  It was mentioned that it was 

consulted with architects and someone else.  I 

have a copy of the International Building Code 
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from 2015, Appendix G, Section G801, and it 

says, "Garages and accessory structures shall be 

designed and constructed in accordance with the 

American Society of Civil Engineers, Article 24.  

So the International Building Code, Appendix G, 

if I could, is for wetlands and floodplains in 

the International Building Code.  They defer to 

the Civil Engineers.  

The American Society of Civil Engineers 

says in that coastal zone, Coastal Zone -- 

Coastal A Zones are treated like coastal hazard 

areas if FEMA has delineated a limit of moderate 

wave action, which that particular area, if you 

look at the survey, they have.  

I highlighted these out of order, but in 

this, in this provision, provisions include 

attached decks, porches, garages, carports and 

accessory storage structures.  So storage sheds 

are actually addressed in the International 

Building Code, and there is a standard set by 

the American Society of Civil Engineers.  

The standard is that in the minimum 

elevation of bottom of lowest horizontal 

structural member in Zone V, which that's not, 

it's Zone AE, or coastal high hazard areas, 
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Zone V, and Coastal A Zone is the design flood 

elevation.  The design flood elevation -- I'm 

breaking in new glasses, I apologize.  The 

design flood elevation equals the Base Flood 

Elevation in communities that regulate based on 

FIRM's map.  The DFE is always equal to or 

higher than the Base Flood Elevation.  The Base 

Flood Elevation in that area is six feet.  

To build a building on the ground, 

according to this, regardless of whether it's 

anchored or not, is not complying with the 

International Building Code.  It's not complying 

with our Chapter 68, and it's not complying with 

the American Society of Civil Engineers.  

The applicant's attorney went on to say 

they put a hole in the building for 

flood-proofing.  There's a whole section on 

flood proofing, wet flood proofing and dry flood 

proofing.  Wet flood proofing in that area, wet 

flood proofing, minimum elevation of the wet 

flood proofing in Coastal A Zone is the Base 

Flood Elevation plus one feet, or the Design 

Flood Elevation, whichever is greater.  Minimum 

elevation of dry flood proofing in Coastal Zone 

A is not permitted, according to the Society of 
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Civil Engineers, who the International Building 

Code takes their standards from.  

There's other things as far as the methods 

for flood proofing, the material, the material 

that's specified to use for flood proofing.  

And, again, I'm struggling here, and I 

apologize.  

Flood damage-resistant materials must be 

used below specified elevations.  Metal 

connectors and fasteners exposed to saltwater, 

salt spray and other corrosive agents must be 

stainless steel or equivalent corrosive 

resistant materials, or hot-dipped galvanized 

after fabrication.  Now it was mentioned that 

the screw anchors are hot-dipped galvanized.  

Makes no mention of any of the fasteners in the 

building, any of the hardware in the building.  

It doesn't mention what the building is 

constructed of.  

In the interest of full disclosure, I'm a 

member of the CAC.  I didn't sign off on the 

waterfront consistent report.  I don't agree 

with my colleagues.  I believe this should take 

precedence.  My colleagues, perhaps from not 

reading this, or -- it also says where -- so I 
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did -- I was there for the inspection of the 

shed.  The wood is not treated wood, it's T-111.  

The American Society of Civil Engineers 

goes on to say dry flood proofing measures are 

not permitted in coastal high hazard areas.  In 

order to be built in that area, it mentions 

pilings, caissons, the material to be used, the 

scour rate.  

Basically, what I'm saying is this 

building was built in stealth.  It was built, we 

understand, without a building permit, but it 

was also built without a wetlands permit.  The 

applicant or his attorney hasn't mentioned that, 

they haven't given a reason for that.  If they 

applied for a wetlands permit, perhaps the 

proper scrutiny would have been applied.  He 

wouldn't have built it in -- without permission, 

and the proper standards for building it would 

have been adhered to.  

I heard just now saying that our code is 

deficient, the State Building Code doesn't 

address sheds.  We know for a fact it does now, 

because I just read from it.  It was also 

suggested that it would be ridiculous to raise a 

shed, because how would somebody access it?  I 
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don't know, I don't know.  But that shouldn't be 

how somebody gets in their shed in a particular 

area if it goes against the building standards 

of the International Building Code and the 

society that they use to set those standard, the 

American Society of Civil Engineers.  I'm not 

going to question that.  

You know, there's nine pages here.  

There's 51 pages in the handbook for -- in 

Appendix G in the International Building Code 

that addresses most of this stuff.  Obviously, 

I'm not going to read any of it, all of it.  All 

I would ask you to do is -- you guys can do 

anything you want.  You're the Mayor and you're 

the Village of Greenport Trustees.  You can do 

anything you want.  You can do the right thing, 

or you can subscribe to the age-old Greenport 

"good ol' boy" paradigm and give forgiveness, 

you know, instead of someone asking permission.  

We hear all the time how we have to 

preserve our waterways and preserve whatever.  

The applicant built a building, a storage shed 

on the ground in a flood zone.  The question I 

raised was -- it was suggested to me, like, 

"Well, we're going to anchor the building.  
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You're afraid the building's going to float 

away?"  And prior to the new paradigm that 

he's -- the new system that he's using with the 

galvanized anchor, it was very possible that the 

building would float away.  

When we were there for the inspection, the 

high tide had risen perhaps -- I'll be 

generous -- 20 feet from the building.  On a 

moon tide, perhaps it would have been higher.  

If the building didn't float away, whatever was 

in that building, if it did flood, paint, 

pesticides, fuel oil, fuel, whatever somebody 

stores in the building, as the water recedes 

from that building, the creek is 39 feet away, 

whatever leaches out of that building leaches 

into the creek.  

You guys can give them this wetlands 

permit, or you can do the right thing.  You can 

raise the building or move the building, but it 

certainly shouldn't stay the way it is.  Thanks.  

Thanks for listening.  

MR. TASKER:  Good evening.  Arthur Tasker, 

17 Beach Street in Greenport.  I'm about five or 

six houses to the east of Mr. Bull's house and 

the location of his shed.  
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Before I -- before I get into the remarks 

that I have prepared, I'd like to make a couple 

of comments on what's already been said, first 

by Mr. Bull, and then by his attorney.  

First of all, the idea that, you know, 

this is such an aesthetic thing, it should be 

allowed.  Well, indeed, it's an attractive 

building, but it's a building that shouldn't be 

there, it's in the wrong place, it doesn't meet 

the appropriate wetlands and flood standards.  

Second of all, the -- I'll address in a 

few minutes the issue of similar structures on 

Beach Road that were built without wetlands 

permits or building permits.  

I'd like to review how we got to where we 

are.  And right now we're looking at an 

application that was made -- that was received 

by the Village Clerk on October 12.  It was 

covered by an August 7, 2017 letter from 

Attorney Moore transmitting Mr. Bull's wetlands 

application for an as-built shed.  The attached 

wetlands permit application was signed by 

Mr. Bull on August 4, 2017.  

There are a couple of very specific 

details that I'd like to address with the permit 
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application itself.  First of all, question 8 in 

the application asks, "Will the project utilize 

Village-owned lands?"  And the answer is no.  

That is false, as I will show later on.  It is 

built on land as to which the Village has a 

deeded easement.  

Second of all, on the second page of the 

wetlands permit application, where the 

supplemental data that's requested is, "Any 

prior existing restrictive covenants which 

permit or regulate the use of subject wetlands," 

and the applicant again has indicated falsely 

"none".  In fact, there is a restrictive 

covenant that I'll talk about in a bit of detail 

in a few minutes that prohibits building any 

buildings in the area north of the paved 

right-of-way on Sandy Beach for the 14 western 

buildings that have land that projects out into 

Stirling Creek.  

There was mention made of these sheds that 

I think you got different pictures of, but these 

are part, the pictures that were shown in the 

application, and I'd like to go through them 

kind of one by one.  

The one that's numbered #2 is owned by 
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Todd Hart, now owned by Wackenfeld.  The one, #3 

was owned by -- and when I say was owned, I'm 

referring to 1944, when I first came to Sandy 

Beach, at a time when I personally witnessed 

that all of these sheds were in existence in 

1944.  You realize, of course, that this was 

before the building first had a Zoning Code in 

1949.  It was before a wetlands permit was 

required in 1976, and it was long before the DEC 

required -- had any wetlands restrictions at all 

about this kind of construction.  

Going back to the buildings, #3, the one 

numbered #3 was owned by Joe Schmidt, is now 

owned by Bendicksen.  

The one, #4, was owned by Clara Craig, now 

Joe Corso.  That one possibly was rebuilt or 

replaced.  I don't have -- I don't know that, it 

looks a bit newer.  

The one, #5, was owned by George Stewart, 

now owned by Arlene and Tom Buckley.  

The one who's owned -- that's numbered 9 

was owned by Irv Price.  He's the grandfather of 

Bill Price, Justice Bill Price in the Village, 

now owned by McCrearys.  

The one that's owned by #10 is -- was 
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built by Jack Adams in 1952, Jack and Janet 

Adams, now owned by their granddaughter, Ingrid 

Young.  

And the one that is indicated as #13 was 

owned then by George Raynor, now owned by Frank 

and Ann Murphy.  

Two others that they indicate, which are 

supposedly built without permits, are #1B, which 

is -- which is owned by Howie Moller.  That, in 

fact, is not in the Village of Greenport, it's 

in Southold Town.  And I have no idea what their 

requirements are for permitting or wetlands 

permits for something like that, but it's not in 

the Village of Greenport.  

The one that's shown as 1C I believe is 

Peter Sideris'.  He's not on Sandy Beach proper, 

he's on the -- he's the piece of property as you 

turn the corner.  There's been litigation over 

that property in the '90s, and I think the 

Village just kind of gave up on enforcing 

anything on that piece of property.  

As to the -- as to the buildings that are 

the sheds that were built in pre-1944, the DEC 

has indicated that those buildings are in an 

area that is not in their purview at all.  In 
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fact, the portion of the properties between the 

existing bulkhead and the roadway, both 

constructed prior to August 1977, is beyond New 

York State DEC Tidal Wetland Jurisdiction.  In 

other words, if it's between the bulkhead and 

the paved road, the DEC has no objection to 

construction and doesn't regulate it.  All of 

those sheds that he's talking about as nearby 

fit that location description, as well as their 

prior construction in 1944.  

The DEC goes on to say, in accordance with 

tidal wetlands use regulations, no permit is 

required for any work in the -- in the parcel 

between the bulkhead and the road, but no 

construction or disturbance of any kind may take 

place seaward of the tidal wetlands 

jurisdictional boundary without a permit.  That 

is to say you have to have a wetlands permit or 

you have to have a permit from the DEC to build 

north of the paved roadway, which is the 

location of Mr. Bull's shed.  

I think in this case -- well, I may come 

back to that point.  Let's leave that for the 

time being.  

As to -- oh, that's right.  His neighbor, 
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Elliot, built a shed right next to him about a 

year before that, and he's one of -- Elliot is 

the one of the ones he cited as being in favor 

of his own shed, of course, as you might expect, 

because if Bull -- if Mr. Bull gets a permit, 

Mr. Elliot's going to get a permit, I would 

think.  

In February 16th, at about the same time 

as they were beginning to take some action on 

Mr. Bull's failure to get a wetlands permit, I 

advised -- I had been in communication with the 

Village Building Department and the Village 

Administrator concerning their failure to get 

any permits, and, at the same time, or shortly 

thereafter, on February 16 of 2017, I sent 

Mr. Pallas and Ms. Wingate an email saying, "I 

may have mentioned also that the property 

immediately to the west of his, that is to the 

west of Mr. Bull's, owned by Paul Ellis, has 

also erected a shed in the equivalent location, 

also without a wetlands or a DEC permit.  Please 

take appropriate action on this violation."  

Well, they started to act on Mr. Bull, but 

they've done nothing, apparently, as best I can 

tell, about Mr. Elliot's Violation.  
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So I mentioned a deeded easement, and 

I'll -- well, I'm going to address that in a 

little more detail in a few minutes.  

I'd like to move along to other dimensions 

of the objections that I have, and provide you 

-- seems like pictures are very much in order 

these days.  It may save a few words, so I'll 

pass out some pictures and maybe go through 

them, if I may.  

The first -- if you follow along with me, 

please, the first picture is an aerial view 

showing Stirling Creek and the entrance of 

Stirling Creek and Greenport Harbor and all of 

Sandy Beach.  And to the -- roughly, in the 

center of the picture, you see the westernmost 

cottages on Sandy Beach at the -- at the bottom 

end of the row.  Those are -- that is the area 

where Mr. Bull's and Mr. Elliot's sheds are both 

constructed and where their houses are located, 

and you can see that it's a pretty natural 

looking wildlife wild area that's unspoiled by 

any kind of construction, other than docks, 

which -- excuse me -- which are permitted.  Keep 

that in your mind.  

And when you turn to the next photograph, 
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if you will, in the deck, you'll see an aerial 

photograph from a different view in a different 

season which shows the same area of unspoiled 

wetlands area behind the houses of Bull and 

Elliot.  

And, finally, turning to the third 

picture, which is a more enlarged aerial view, 

you'll see the houses from a different 

viewpoint, and starting from the left of the row 

of houses, the second house is Elliot's house, 

the one with the three skylights.  The house 

next to that is Mr. Bull's house, and behind 

them are -- their sheds are built.  They don't 

show in this photograph, because this photograph 

was taken before the sheds were built.  My house 

is the last house on the right that you see in 

that photograph, 200 feet away from Mr. Bull's.  

That's the house with the square flat white 

roof.  So it shows the proximity to Mr. Bull's 

house.  

Let me pause to tell you a little bit of 

the history of Sandy Beach and how things got 

where they were.  In 1930s, the Sandy Beach 

Association of Greenport, Inc. was formed and 

they bought land, about 1,000 feet of land 
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inside the breakwater heading up toward the 

point that had been previously rented.  They 

bulkheaded 1,000 feet of it, roughly, and sub -- 

it was subdivided subsequently into 23 parcels 

running between the bulkhead on the south and 

the paved right-of-way along the north border.  

In 1950, Herbert Fordham, who owned a lot 

of land in the Sandy Beach area, and also 

running up to the North Road, some of you may 

know his house was called Oak Farm and it's the 

big white house set back from the road just west 

of Island's End Golf Course.  He owned that.  He 

owned from the North Road to the Sound and had 

that house there.  

In 1950, he offered the Sandy Beachers a 

100-feet-deep north-to-south by 600-foot-wide 

east-to-west parcel adjoining the north or 

Stirling Creek side of Sandy Beach to the 14 

westers -- western owners on Sandy Beach.  Henry 

Tasker, my father, on behalf of the 14 owners, 

including himself, purchased that 

100-by-600-foot parcel and subdivided it, much 

of it under water, in fact, and still remains 

under water, and subdivided that among the 13 

owners.  The 13 owners paid roughly $200 apiece 
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for their 100-foot portion of land extending out 

into the creek in 1950.  

The north lots on Stirling Creek that I 

speak of from that 100-foot-deep parcel are also 

burdened by -- on the southern -- on the 

southern side, 20 feet of it, by an easement 

that Fordham had given to the Village of 

Greenport in 1940, 10 years before he sold the 

parcel to the Sandy Beachers, with the intent 

being to build a road to Sandy Beach Point.  

That easement is still Village of Greenport 

property.  

Turn to the next photo, if you will, black 

and white photo in the deck, and it lays it out 

a little bit photographically, I think, to help 

understand it.  It shows the 30-foot paved 

right-of-way between the two white lines in the 

photograph, and to the left of it, the -- where 

-- at the left line of the right-of-way in this 

picture starts the 20-foot Village of Greenport 

easement going toward the left of the picture, 

and the same line also starts the 100-foot lot, 

which has on it a building restriction, which I 

will address in more detail.  To the right of 

the white line on the right-hand side running 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Flynn Stenography & Transcription Service

 (631) 727-1107

Regular Session 11/27/17  31

just about -- is the right foot -- is the right 

side or the south side of the deeded -- of the 

right-of-way, and it comes within about one foot 

of Mr. Bull's porch.  

Turning to the next one is the aerial 

picture of a portion of the zoning map of Sandy 

Beach, and I think it will put the location of 

things in perspective.  

Starting at the bottom, going across 

there, outlined in yellow are the 23 bulk 

properties within the bulkhead.  On the top line 

of that row is the paved 30-foot-wide 

right-of-way, and shown in there is, starting 

from the left, Elliot's house, Mr. Bull's house, 

and my house, and you can see their proximity.  

But more importantly, in the area that is 

outlined in green, that is the 100-by-600 foot 

lot that Fordham sold to the Village -- to the 

Sandy Beachers that was subdivided and extended 

their properties another 100 feet north into 

Stirling Creek, some of it dry land, some of it 

-- much of it land under water.  

That land was sold -- was conveyed with 

restrictive covenants to the 14 owners of that 

lot to protect the land from development to 
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remain as unbuilt wetlands, and the restrictive 

covenant reads exactly this:  

"The premises are conveyed subject to the 

following restrictions:  

One, no building or any part thereof, or 

structure of any kind, shall be erected or 

maintained on any part of said premises," that 

is the 100-by-600 foot premises, "except a dock, 

pier or bulkhead for the mooring of small boats.  

Number three, these covenants shall be 

taken and considered as covenants running with 

the land and binding upon the grantees and their 

successor grantees."  

If you turn to the next photograph in the 

deck, which shows a view of the wetlands, I'm 

trying to show the -- first of all, the location 

of Mr. Bull's shed and Mr. Elliot's shed.  

There's a line that indicates the 100-feet-deep 

area restricted from building of structures 

which runs from the red line, which is the edge 

of the right-of-way, approximately to the end -- 

to the shoreline at this particular point.  

There is also shown in the bottom left corner of 

the 20-foot Village easement that essentially 

runs through Mr. Bull's shed.  
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There seems to be some scepticism about 

where the floodplain is, but I think 

Mr. Saladino addressed that, indeed.  

If you'll look at this picture, you'll see 

in the very left side there, there is an opening 

in the fence, a gate area.  Turning to the next 

picture shows a picture taken during Hurricane 

Irene in August 2011.  It's taken from that same 

gateway in the previous picture, looking out 

onto the creek, and you can see that the -- that 

the water has risen almost -- has risen to that 

fence opening, which is about on the property 

line of the Village's easement.  So it 

completely covered that easement.  It completely 

would have covered Bull's and Elliot's sheds 

both in that -- in that storm alone, and would 

have flooded both of those buildings, and the 

gasoline and the other things that they're 

storing in it.  Excuse me. 

The next picture shows a little -- a view 

from a little farther east in the wetlands area, 

and that's a view of the -- taken from further 

east, I say, showing the easement again and the 

restricted area, and putting their sign -- I 

mean, a visual perspective.  The red line on the 
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left-hand side running at the telephone pole, 

that is the line, the line of the utility poles, 

which is the border line between the added 

parcels and the original parcels to those 14 

properties.  

You can see how that happened, how that 

occurs, how the Village's easement works in 

this, if you'll turn to the next one, which is a 

portion of the survey that Mr. Bull provided 

with his wetlands application.  And you can see, 

when you superimpose the edge of the 20-foot 

easement, the line in red, you can see that it 

cuts about two-thirds, through two-thirds, and 

leaves about two-thirds of Mr. Bull's shed on 

the Village's property.  

The next two pages we don't -- I don't 

need to cover, because they really just show a 

copy, a portion of the copy of the deed of 

Mr. Bull's predecessor that includes the 

restrictive covenants against any buildings of 

any sort in that area.  

The final one in the deck is this picture 

here.  It is a portion of a survey by Otto 

Van Tuyl.  You can recognize his style.  If 

you've ever looked at surveys around Greenport, 
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you can recognize his style of planning, and you 

can see three things.  First of all, the 

property of the Sandy Beach Association running 

about the middle of the property left to right.  

The right-of-way is shown in orange.  That's the 

30-foot right-of-way that the residents have 

over each other's property to access their own 

property.  And the yellow area was the 20-foot 

easement, which is restricted -- which is owned 

by the Village of Greenport.  And then the 

property north of that, where you see Henry 

Tasker, my father's name written, that's the 

property that was deeded to him to be 

subdivided.  

And, finally, a portion of the 1940 deed 

to the Village of Greenport for -- that was 

intended to be for a road.  It wasn't recorded 

until 1945.  Apparently, the Village had lost 

interest in the road.  Whether that had to do 

with World War II or not, it's hard to say.  

But, at that point, Mr. Fordham wanted out of 

the lands that he owned.  

There are several reasons why the wetlands 

permit shouldn't be granted, and I've already 

covered two of them.  One is the fact that the 
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land is burdened by a restrictive covenant that 

prohibits any building at all.  

Mr. Bull built his shed in knowing 

violation of the restrictive covenants.  The 

covenants were recorded.  They show in the chain 

of title.  In fact, the deed itself to Mr. Allen 

that I recited a portion of, his predecessor in 

title, appears as a -- as a restriction in his 

title report from the title company.  

In fact, in a conversation with Mr. Bull 

in the summer of 2016, he even gave me his 

personal assurance that he knew about and would 

comply with the restrictions against building 

anything in that area, a trust that obviously 

was not kept.  Notwithstanding his knowledge and 

his promise to me, in December 2016, Mr. Bull 

surreptitiously constructed his shed in the 

wetlands after the other residents had closed 

their cottages and left Sandy Beach for the 

winter.  

In late December 2016, I brought the 

Bulls' and Elliot's attention to the restriction 

prohibiting their shed.  They refused to do 

anything about it.  And as a result, I was 

forced to hire attorneys to seek judicial relief 
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to enforce the restrictive covenant.  There is 

now an action pending in Suffolk County Supreme 

Court against the Bulls and the Elliots for 

enforcement of that restrictive covenant.  

Now, even though the Village of Greenport 

is not involved at all in this litigation, nor 

should it be, because it is a private covenant 

affecting the land, nonetheless, the Village 

should not act on this wetlands application 

while that action is pending.  Perhaps it's not 

in the interest of the Village to approve this 

or any permit associated with this shed while 

the covenant is litigated.  

Therefore, I respect that the Village 

Board -- respectfully suggest that the Village 

Board adjourn consideration of this wetlands 

permit application until the conclusion of the 

litigation.  At that point, the Board can resume 

consideration of the application, if it is then 

warranted.  

As I mentioned also that the Village -- 

another reason to decline this permit, to refuse 

this permit is because the shed is built on 

Village-owned property.  As I said, his 

application falsely states that the shed doesn't 
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utilize Village-owned lands.  As to -- but it 

does, as to which the Village still possesses 

unblemished title.  The shed sits on -- squarely 

on and trespasses on the Village easement 

without any license or leave from the Village.  

The Village easement is cited, is further 

recited as a restriction on all of the 

subdivision deeds to the Herbert Fordham parcel, 

and it is with that -- with that -- that 

knowledge is conveyed that way, so Mr. Bull 

should have had knowledge of that easement as 

well, if his attorney had done their work, or at 

the time that he purchased the land.   

The Village should not permit the Bull's 

shed to trespass on land as to which the Village 

has a deeded property interest.  This wetlands 

permit should be denied for this reason, and 

Bull should be made to remove his shed from the 

Village's property.  

For another reason, Mr. Bull is not 

entitled to a special permit for an exception to 

the Wetlands Code Section of Chapter 142.  That 

controls all wetlands activities to, "Provide 

for the protection, preservation, proper 

maintenance and use of its tidal marshes and 
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floodplain lands in order to prevent their 

disturbance from the danger of flood and storm 

tides, and to otherwise protect the quality of 

coastal wetlands, tidal waters, marshes, 

shorelines and beaches for their conservation, 

economics, aesthetics and other public uses and 

values."  

I submit that permitting this application 

to a property owner on Sandy Beach bordering 

Stirling Creek to construct sheds or other 

structures on the flood plains and tidal marshes 

is a direct violation of the intent of 

Chapter 142 of the code. 

In my letter to you of several days ago, 

for which, by the way, I apologize, one for the 

tardiness of sending it to you on the eve of a 

holiday, but I was engaged in client business 

that took priority, I'm afraid, over my own, and 

also for its length, but there's a lot to cover 

in it.  

So I've covered more specifically the 

reasons why Chapter 142 militates against giving 

a wetlands permit for this application.  

Further, the application does not meet the 

requirements of Chapter 68 for flood damage 
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protection.  Mr. Saladino very much trumped 

anything that I would -- was going to be able to 

say on Chapter 68, so I'm going to adopt his 

comments as my own with respect to that part -- 

to that part of the code.  

The applicant's failure to reply to the 

requirements of Chapter 68 -- it's required to 

make an application.  He didn't even make an 

application, let alone have it -- have it 

reviewed or considered.  Apparently, at the 

urgings of the applicant and his attorney, the 

CAC didn't want to consider Article 68 at all, 

as Mr. Saladino alluded to.  

So, in conclusion, I'd have to say that 

there are sufficient reasons to deny Mr. Bull's 

wetlands application for any one of the four 

particular reasons that I've discussed.  First, 

the litigation presently under adjudication 

arising from his intentional violation of a 

restrictive covenant; second, trespass on 

Village property by constructing his shed on the 

Village's deeded easement; third, by failure to 

satisfy the requirements of Chapter 142 for 

wetlands, floodplains and drainage; fourth, for 

failure to meet the requirements of Chapter 68 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Flynn Stenography & Transcription Service

 (631) 727-1107

Regular Session 11/27/17  41

for flood damage protection.  Any one of those 

is sufficient reason to deny the permit.  But 

when the four particular reasons are considered 

collectively, as all of the facts and 

circumstances should be, the Village Board 

should reach a conclusion to deny Mr. Bull's 

wetlands application in its entirety.  

Are there any questions?  

(No Response) 

MR. TASKER:  Thank you for your time.  

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  I'm sorry, Mayor.  Did 

we -- could I just get clarification of Mr. -- 

Mr. Tasker, you're stating that you're in 

litigation at the present moment?  

MR. TASKER:  That's correct.  

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Has the Village been 

notified of such action?  

MR. TASKER:  Why should they be?  

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  I'm just asking.  

MR. TASKER:  No, there's no reason, it's 

private litigation.  

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Okay.  That's all I'm 

asking.  

MR. TASKER:  Thank you.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  It was in his email the 
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day before Thanksgiving to us.

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  I know, I was reading 

it, but I just wanted to --  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Okay.  No. 

MR. TASKER:  Yeah.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  We're not part of it or 

anything, so that's a -- 

MR. TASKER:  As I said, the Village is not 

a participant, nor should they be.  

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Right.  I just would 

like it publicly put on the record.  

MR. TASKER:  I said it.  

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  I know, but I asked you 

a question.  

MR. PROKOP:  Wait, I have a question.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Okay.  

MR. PROKOP:  Excuse me 

MR. TASKER:  Oh, sorry.  

MR. PROKOP:  This portion of a survey -- 

MR. TASKER:  Yes.  

MR. PROKOP:  -- that -- 

MR. TASKER:  I have the entire survey -- 

MR. PROKOP:  That you submitted.  

MR. TASKER:  -- if you'd like to see it.  

MR. PROKOP:  So this is what you're 
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calling the Van Tuyl survey?  

MR. TASKER:  Yes.  

MR. PROKOP:  And the coloring here, was 

that added, the yellow and the orange?  

MR. TASKER:  I added those just for 

clarification.  

MR. PROKOP:  Do you have a copy of the 

survey without the coloring?  

MR. TASKER:  I believe I do.  

MR. PROKOP:  Okay.  

MR. TASKER:  And I can provide that.  I 

will submit that as an addendum to my 

submissions to the Clerk.  

MR. PROKOP:  In your complaint against the 

four owners, you ask for determinations 

regarding the restrictions.  Was it both 

restrictions, the 19 -- the 1940 restriction and 

also -- the 1940 easement and also the no-build 

covenant, or was it -- 

MR. TASKER:  No, only the no-build 

covenant. 

MR. PROKOP:  Only the no-build covenant.  

MR. TASKER:  I'm not seeking relief on 

that basis at all, not the -- I'm not going to 

enforce the Village's easement.  
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MR. PROKOP:  Right, okay.  That's what -- 

that's what I was going to ask you.  

MR. TASKER:  Okay.  I don't need them for 

a client.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  All right.  Thank you.  

MR. TASKER:  Thank you.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Okay.  Make sure there's 

nobody else and then you can address us.  Did 

anybody else want to address the Village Board 

on this?  Okay, Ms. Moore.  

MS. MOORE:  I want to address some of the 

points.  With respect to Mr. Saladino's points 

on the interpretation of the flood ordinance and 

the building code, I will rely on architects and 

the Building Department, not Mr. Saladino.  I 

disagree with his interpretation of the flood 

ordinance.  

We are complying with the flood prevention 

by providing for the helical screws and the 

venting.  That's what the Building Department 

stated they would be satisfied, that we would 

comply with the Village Code with those 

provisions, and we would rely on the Building 

Department for that, not Mr. Saladino.  

Another issue that was raised is that the 
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DEC, that somehow or another we are within the 

wetlands.  That is incorrect.  The DEC 

jurisdiction extends 300 feet from tidal 

wetlands.  The survey was actually -- that's in 

your packet was flagged by Suffolk Environmental 

on August 1st, 2016, when this survey was 

prepared, which is a brand new survey, and it 

identifies a location of the wetlands, which is 

based on vegetation.  

We are in the upland, as the Board 

accurately described.  That is the proposal, is 

the shed in the upland area.  It is not in the 

wetlands.  

The DEC did send Mr. Tasker, contacted, or 

the Building Department -- somebody contacted 

the DEC.  The DEC came -- sent a letter and 

said, "Next time get a permit," but it is not -- 

it's been resolved with the DEC.  They just 

said, "Next time you come in and get a 

permit."  

It is in their adjacent area, as 

they've -- as they define their jurisdiction.  

So it is -- their jurisdiction ends if a 

bulkhead was built prior to '77, if you exceed 

the 10-foot contour.  Neither of those two 
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things exist here, so we have an adjacent area 

and -- but, again, not in the wetlands.  So I'm 

correcting some of the testimony and allegations 

with respect to that.  

The Village easement, I know nothing of 

it.  Our survey doesn't show it.  I don't 

believe it ever appeared on any of your title 

records.  So that's something that we are not 

aware of.  

MR. TASKER:  It's in the chain of title.  

MS. MOORE:  Thank you.  It does not appear 

on Mr. Bull's title documents, to our knowledge.  

And so the fact that the -- even if there were 

such an easement, it is an easement.  It would 

seem to me that the Village at some point might 

have built a road had they wanted to extend the 

road, a 50-foot road, the 20 that the owners 

have and then an additional 30, so that it would 

become a Village highway spec, which is 50 feet, 

or 54 feet.  

I don't know the purpose from 1930s, but 

at that time you could fill land and you could 

expand the Village as you chose, and this being 

a possible road.  I don't believe the Village 

has any intention of expanding any of the roads.  
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And if there is such an easement, we could 

certainly provide insurance naming the Village 

as easement holder.  It is what it is.  

If there's such an easement there, it 

would take Mr. Prokop and I a lot of time to 

figure out what happened to that easement, and 

was it ever effectuated, was it accepted by the 

Village Board?  There may have been a deed, but 

was there a resolution accepting it?  There's a 

lot of questions on that one, but that's all new 

here.  It really has no relevance to this 

application.  

And that's it.  There is private 

litigation.  Mr. Tasker brought litigation 

against both Mr. Bull and Mr. Elliot, the two 

properties that have sheds, and he's trying to 

get the Village to enforce what he is trying to 

get through a Supreme Court action.  We'll see 

what the Supreme Court has to say with respect 

to the covenants, whether it's -- you know, it 

can properly be interpreted the way that Mr. 

Tasker wishes.  

And, generally, covenants are enforced 

strictly as far as they are the opposite.  They 

are not enforced strictly against an applicant.  
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They are -- the language is contrary to the 

conveyance of land.  So covenants, the courts 

are very careful about enforcing covenants.  

If there is any way of interpreting that 

covenant, since boat and docks and so on were 

permitted, clearly, a shed, a boathouse 

storage -- as you can see, it's the storage for 

the boats and the dock paraphernalia.  So it 

certainly could be argued and the Court could 

certainly interpret that the shed is consistent 

with the dock that is permissible on the 

property.  

So that, it will be determined by a court 

and it has nothing to do with the Village, and I 

would ask that the Village Board disregard that 

whole issue.  So thank you.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Thank you.  

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  May I ask a question?  

May I ask a question?  

MS. MOORE:  Yes, sure.  

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  I just want to clarify 

something you said.  You said that this is -- 

the DEC has jurisdiction within 300 feet.  

MS. MOORE:  Yes.  

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  And your contention is 
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that this shed is further than 300 feet away 

from the lot line?  

MS. MOORE:  Oh, no, no, no, no.  It was 

within the DEC jurisdiction.  

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Okay.

MS. MOORE:  They sent a letter saying, 

"Next time you build something, please contact 

us."  They came, inspected the dock.  The dock 

had permits, there were no issues.  The shed 

should have gotten a permit from the DEC.  The 

DEC has a choice of issuing a violation or 

issuing, you know, no further action is 

necessary.  That's what they did, no further 

action is necessary, so -- 

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  But they did not issue a 

permit?  

MS. MOORE:  They can't do a permit after 

the fact.  If the -- so there is usually a 

consent order in lieu of a permit, or, you know, 

that's no fines, nothing.  It's just -- 

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Okay.  

MS. MOORE:  It was resolved.  

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Thank you.  

MS. MOORE:  So, yeah.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Okay.  
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MS. MOORE:  Any other questions?  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  All right.  Thank you.  

MS. MOORE:  Thank you.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  All right.  Anybody?  

MR. SALADINO:  John Saladino, Sixth 

Street.  

The first thing I would like to say, I 

offered no opinion.  My opinion, I didn't offer 

my opinion.  I read from -- from the 

International Building Code word for word, and I 

read from the organization that they use for 

building standards, which is the American 

Society of Civil Engineers Flood -- Flood 

Resistant Design and Construction Handbook.  

So I didn't offer my opinion, unlike the 

applicant's architect, unnamed architect.  

Architects, how valid is an architect's opinion?  

They build houses.  What do they know about 

floodplains?  That's my opinion.  

The other thing I would like to tell you 

is this is the warning letter from the DEC, and 

it says, "These are regulated activities within 

the department's tidal wetlands jurisdiction."  

So nowhere in the letter does it state that this 

is upland property.  Anybody's that's familiar 
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with the area knows there is no upland property 

there, knows that the area is -- if you look at 

the survey, you'll see that even the wave action 

runs through the applicant's house, runs halfway 

through the applicant's house.  So to consider 

that portion of the property upland -- so just 

to clarify it, I didn't offer an opinion.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Okay.  

MR. SALADINO:  I read, I read verbatim 

from the handbook.  So thanks.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Thank you.  

MR. TASKER:  Arthur Tasker again.  I'm 

astonished at the dismissiveness as far as the 

validity of the easement and so forth are 

concerned and whether or not it -- the Village's 

easement, and whether or not it applies to this 

land.  

The same deed that was cited specifically 

in Mr. Bull's chain -- in his chain -- his chain 

of title, it was cited specifically, and his 

title report was recorded on Liber 3148 at Page 

224 in Suffolk County, and this was the deed 

from Henry Tasker, my father, to Donald Allen 

subdividing the 100-by-600 foot lot, his portion 

to Donald Allen.  
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And he said the -- talking about the 

20-feet strip immediately to -- on the 

southernmost portion of the 100-foot lot, reads 

as follows.  It's a difficult-to-read copy, so 

you'll have to bear with me, if you will.  

"Strip one adjacent to the aforesaid 

right-of-way," that's the 30-foot right-of-way 

that we've been talking about, "is conveyed 

subject to a street dedication to the Village of 

Greenport on June 27th, 1940," and recorded in 

Suffolk County at the page that I cited.  And a 

right-of-way over the -- of 30 feet was 

considered to be added -- addable to the 20 foot 

that's recorded -- that's recited in this deed, 

because the idea was to build a 50-foot road to 

the point, which Herbert Fordham also owned and 

wanted to develop.  Subsequently, that land 

became owned by the Village of Greenport through 

a succession of Herbert Fordham's heirs and then 

who so in turn sold it to the Village of 

Greenport.  Thank you.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Okay.  Anybody else wish 

to comment on the public hearing?    

(No Response) 

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Okay.  Just as a matter of 
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course, the way we normally do business, we take 

testimony for a public hearing.  We do not vote 

on that at that month.  We've gotten a lot of 

information between the emails, your paperwork 

and everything else.  The Village Attorney and 

Village Administrator will be working on this.  

So I'm just going to offer a motion to keep open 

the public hearing, and we'll discuss this at 

our work session in December. 

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Second.  

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Second.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  All in favor?

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Aye.

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Aye.

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Aye.

Opposed?

(No Response)

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Motion carried.  

Thank you, everybody, for your input on 

this.  And we're going to go over all the 

information, and we'll discuss it at our next 

work session.  All right.  Thank you.  

Okay.  We have two continued additional 
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public hearings, they are open.  The first one 

was Section 9 and Section 18, the Multi Family 

Dwelling, of Chapter 150.  That has been posted.  

We hope to have something together in print and 

all for next month to discuss at the work 

session and continue on that, if anybody had 

additional information.  I said we were going to 

get out there.  We've had a lot of other things 

going on.  We have not gotten anything out on 

that.  So we will deal with that next month.  

The Proposed amendment to Chapter 118, 

Subdivision and Merger of Land, I believe that 

was posted, and that's on the Village website.  

There was a question that came up at our work 

session.  Trustee Roberts stepped out for a 

moment.  

Joe, we had the question on if somebody 

bought six pieces of land and wanted to take 

them down, could they take the six pieces of 

land adjoining each other and build a mansion on 

it with the way this is written, or is it 

specifically one vacant piece of land next to an 

improved piece of land, if I'm saying that 

properly?  

MR. PROKOP:  Right.  So it would be -- I 
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mean, it's a case-by-case basis.  But, 

generally, if you have adjoining pieces of 

property combined, then the things like lot 

coverage restrictions would be cumulative on -- 

and it would double whatever, whatever based on 

the square footage of the properties, the two 

combined properties.  

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  In other words, you're 

saying the building envelope -- 

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Okay.  

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  -- would be larger?  

MR. PROKOP:  The building envelope would  

be larger.  

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  That's what I thought.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Right.  So if you bought 

three pieces of property, you could triple the 

size of the one building that was on it, 

provided it still fit under the lot coverage.  

There's no restriction on how many pieces of 

land you could go and purchase and tie them all 

together.  

MR. PROKOP:  Right.  And it would still be 

subject to setbacks and things like that, which 

limit it.  It might not exactly be three times, 

but it would be larger based on the increased 
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lot size, yes.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Okay.  Did you hear that, 

Doug?  

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  I'm sorry.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  All right.  We were 

talking, the question you had at the work 

session, could you take six pieces of land and 

merge them all together and put it on a big 

pieces of property.  The Village Attorney said 

yes, you would be able to do that, under the 

restrictions of lot coverage and size and 

setbacks.  

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Okay.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Okay.  That was just a 

question we had, so it was still open.  So that 

is -- that's your answer on that.  

MS. MOORE:  I have a comment about this 

public hearing.  Are you taking comments?  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Yes.  

MS. MOORE:  Okay.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Yeah.  

MS. MOORE:  Are you ready to take 

comments?  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Yeah.  I was just 

explaining where we were and everything else.  
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Go ahead.  Mr. Tasker was up before you, so.  

MR. TASKER:  That's all right.  May I -- 

I'm sorry.  

MS. MOORE:  That's okay.  

MR. TASKER:  May I briefly?  My 

understanding, and I don't have the text of the 

proposed -- excuse me -- the proposed ordinance 

to me -- available to me, but it was my 

understanding that the purpose was to conjoin 

substandard lots, and that once a substandard 

lot has been -- had been conjoined with another 

lot so that it became standard, it is no longer 

available -- it is no longer able to be 

conjoined with yet another lot.  

So I don't see how that can pyramid into 

six lots being jammed together, because you take 

the first substandard lot and merge it with 

either a standard or a substandard lot, and 

that's it, it is now one standard lot.  Can't be 

conjoined to anything else, can't be merged with 

another lot.  That's how I understood the 

language to be written.  I don't have a copy of 

it in front of me, but I think it should be 

inspected for that purpose to make sure that 

this snowballing cannot be done.  Thank you.  
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MAYOR HUBBARD:  Thank you.  Was that 

correct, Joe?  

MR. PROKOP:  So the answer is there's 

currently provision in our subdivision law which 

prevents or precludes the combination of lots by 

merger, intentional merger.  And what one -- 

there's two aspects of this proposed law.  The 

second aspect would remove that prohibition.  So 

the proposal is to remove that prohibition which 

would allow the intentional merger of lots.  The 

other, the other portion of the proposed law is 

to have an automatic merger for zoning purposes 

of nonconforming lots.  So if there's two lots 

side by side that are owned by the -- at least 

50% by the same common owner, if one of them is 

substandard, then it would -- for zoning 

purposes, it would merge with the adjoining, the 

adjoining property.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Okay.  

MS. MOORE:  You're standing, I'll wait.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Okay.  But you were there, 

you started to get up.    

MS. MOORE:  I'm being courteous, it's 

okay.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  That's fine.  
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MR. SALADINO:  John Saladino, Sixth 

Street, again.

I expressed how I felt about this with 

building envelopes and lot size.  

The other thing I would ask is I just 

can't get my head around how -- first of all, 

how this wound up on the Mayor's desk.  Someone 

comes to the Building Inspector, the Building 

Department to merge a lot, and it was explained 

by Mayor Hubbard that you have two people that 

are interested in doing this.  I just can't get 

my head around changing the code to accommodate 

two people, especially when there's a remedy in 

place already, it's called the Zoning Board of 

Appeals.  

I mean, if somebody wants to do this, we 

have a -- we have a provision in our code that 

says you can't merge lots, and the remedy for 

that is to go in front of the Zoning Board and 

state your case to the Zoning Board at a public 

hearing for the public, for public scrutiny, for 

public comment.  And the Zoning Board, 

hopefully, would come to a decision that would 

accommodate what's in the best interest to the 

Village.  
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So now you're going to change the code 

because you have two applications in front of 

the Building Inspector that want to merge lots.  

I just -- I just don't understand it.  And 

that's in addition to all the other things.  I'm 

saying do we really need -- the way I read the 

code change was that a substandard lot would 

automatically be joined to an adjacent standard 

lot.  Am I kind of getting that right?  

MR. PROKOP:  Yes, that's right.  

MR. SALADINO:  So, in response to what 

Arthur is saying, what if there are two 

substandard lots next to an adjoining standard 

lot, a 7500 square foot lot, and that property 

owner owns in entirety a 4500 square foot lot 

next door and a 7,000 square foot lot on the 

other side?  They would automatically be joined, 

if I'm reading the code change correctly.  And 

that could also pyramid.  

I mean, I don't know an area in the 

Village where there's four or five substandard 

lots surrounded by a standard lot, but I'm sure 

-- I'm sure for somebody to ask for this code 

change, perhaps that might be what's going on.  

I don't really know, because they haven't been 
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identified.  The properties haven't been 

identified, which I kind of thought might have 

been shared with the public to voice an opinion 

about that.  Now it just becomes as-of-right.  

You guys know how I feel about changing 

the code.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Uh-huh.  

MR. SALADINO:  I don't think you should 

change the code because somebody walks in the 

Building Department and asks you to do it.  I 

just -- I don't think that should happen.  If it 

serves the majority of the residents, if it's -- 

if it's needed, if it's outmoded, we just passed 

the subdivision law three, three years ago.  

It's not like it was from 1949 that Arthur's 

talking about, you know, it's from three years 

ago. 

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Right. 

MR. SALADINO:  So I assumed it was well 

thought out, you know, and well vetted.  Thanks.  

Thanks for listening.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Okay.  Let me just get a 

clarification on this.  From -- when I asked 

about this, let's send it to the Zoning Board of 

Appeals, and the interpretation the Village 
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Administrator will give you, that it does not go 

to the Zoning Board of Appeals, there's no 

place, no mechanism for that to happen.  So I'll 

let him explain that.  

MR. SALADINO:  It's a zoning variance.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Well -- 

MR. PALLAS:  Because it's in Chapter 118, 

it's my understanding that you can't give a 

variance on anything but Chapter 150.  That was 

my understanding.  This is in Chapter 115.  So 

you can't give a variance to merge lots.  

MR. SALADINO:  Well, that's not true, 

because Chapter 68, relief from Chapter 68, the 

floodplain law, goes to the Zoning Board, if you 

read the law.  

MR. PALLAS:  Right.  By law, right, it's 

spelled out in the law that that's the case, 

correct.  In the code?  

MR. SALADINO:  Well, it says as in the 

code.  

MR. PROKOP:  I think that's correct.  

MR. SALADINO:  That's what it -- 

MR. PALLAS:  But in 118, I don't think 

there is that relief spelled out.  

MR. SALADINO:  Well, perhaps the easier 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Flynn Stenography & Transcription Service

 (631) 727-1107

Regular Session 11/27/17  63

code change would be to revise Code 118, that 

somebody that requests this should go to the 

Zoning Board, or to the Planning Board, or to 

you guys.  You know, it's not like I'm looking 

for work here.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  No.

(Laughter)  

MR. SALADINO:  For people that don't know 

it, I'm on the Zoning Board.  You know, I'm not 

looking for additional work.  It's just -- it 

just shouldn't be as of right.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Right.  When this -- 

MR. SALADINO:  The public should have 

input.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Yeah.  When this all 

started, I said let them go to the Zoning Board, 

let us take care of it that way, so that we 

don't have to go and change the code.  And there 

was no mechanism the way everything is written 

right now for it to go that way.  That's why we 

ended up at this point of where we are, because 

I said, well, that could take months.  I said it 

doesn't matter to me if it takes months.  If 

that's the mechanism we have, let them go 

through that way, and I was instructed that it 
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cannot be done that way.  So I'm just trying to 

clarify.  That's why we're here now, because 

there's nothing in our code that would allow for 

the Zoning Board to rule on that as is.  

MR. SALADINO:  Well, that would seem like 

an easier code change than this.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Well, then that's why 

we're taking input.  That's what we're trying to 

do to solve the issue to make sure it's done 

properly, that's all.  Thank you.  

MR. SALADINO:  Thank you.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Okay.  Go ahead.  

MS. MOORE:  Thank you.  Mr. Saladino, I 

agree with you.  

(Laughter) 

MS. MOORE:  Write down -- put that in the 

calendar.  

No.  Actually, I don't know if my client's 

application was one of them.  We had a situation 

where my client owns a house, had an adjacent 

parcel and they wanted to merge the two 

properties.  They were -- just to build an 

addition, a small addition, porch addition to 

the house, and that's when it was discovered 

that the code doesn't allow you to do it.  
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When I read it, I thought, oh, a lot 

modification, a lot line change from the 

Planning Board seemed to be an easier method 

than to get a variance or -- because if I went 

to the Zoning Board, it was being addressed as a 

use variance or something, which would be crazy 

to have to go for a use variance, because that 

would be an extreme economic hardship argument 

at the Zoning Board of Appeals.  

A simpler process would be in the code 

provision that does not allow the merging, to 

allow it to be reviewed by, for example, the 

Planning Board in a lot modification, lot line 

modification.  

The other -- before Mr. Saladino spoke 

with respect to that issue, my concern when I 

read the code was it doesn't differentiate 

between improved properties.  So if you had -- 

and, clearly, that's not the intent.  When you 

have two homes, let's say that they're both 

nonconforming, preexisting nonconforming, and 

they're owned in the same name, your code does 

not distinguish between whether or not they -- 

if they're owned in the same name, do they 

merge.  That's clearly not the intention, but 
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the code doesn't -- did not address that.  And I 

know that that is through the Southold Town 

Zoning -- Zoning.  They've had a lot of years of 

issues with mergers, and when does it occur, and 

when does it not occur, all of the hardships 

that can occur inadvertently, because people 

have owned property in adjacent properties 

believing that they would never merge.  All of a 

sudden your change to the code would be quite a 

surprise that some people won't learn of it for 

10, 15 years from now.  

So it is a real hardship when you make 

such a drastic change, and maybe a small 

incremental change to that provision that 

prohibits the merging of property to give some 

relief.  That clearly is necessary, because very 

simple, small land merging that really doesn't 

change the character of the neighborhood, it's 

still a relatively small lot, is -- would have 

been welcome, but it created a -- the code 

prevented it.  So thank you. 

MR. PROKOP:  Are you talking about the new 

code?  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Thank you.  

MR. PROKOP:  The new code or the existing 
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code?  

MS. MOORE:  No, the proposed.  

MR. PROKOP:  The proposed code says 

that -- 

MS. MOORE:  Did it say vacant?  Because -- 

MR. PROKOP:  No.  It says that if two -- 

if the two adjoining properties, nonconforming 

properties are improved, then they don't merge.  

It's only -- 

MS. MOORE:  Oh, that wasn't -- 

MR. PROKOP:  It's only where one of them 

is not.  

MS. MOORE:  Oh.  I pulled up the code and 

it didn't -- I didn't see that.  

MR. PROKOP:  Okay.  We'll get you a copy.  

MS. MOORE:  So maybe it was my mistake. 

MR. PROKOP:  Okay.  

MS. MOORE:  Thank you.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  All right.  Thank you.  

Anybody else wish to discuss this?  

(No Response) 

MAYOR HUBBARD:  All right.  We're going 

to, you know, take the comments tonight.  We'll 

work on putting a final draft together so 

everybody can see what it is.  If we're going to 
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go that way, we may go the op -- the different 

way of just modifying a section of it, so that 

there is a way to go and send it to Planning 

Board or Zoning Board.  Let's do some paperwork 

on that and circulate it around between us 

and -- 

MR. PROKOP:  Okay.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  That's -- both of these 

have been on our agenda for a while.  I'd like 

to get them wrapped up so we can move on to 

other things.  Okay?  Thank you.  

All right.  At this time, we'll open up to 

the public that wish to address the Board, any 

topic.  Go ahead.  Yeah, come on up to the 

podium.  Just name and address, and it's all 

yours.  

MS. BOSWORTH:  Okay.  Hi.  I'm Rachel 

Bosworth, 417 Main Street.  Thank you for 

allowing me a few minutes to speak tonight.  

I live in an apartment on Main Street.  I 

am also a freelance writer and communications 

consultant that works from home.  I would like 

to share my views on parking solutions for both 

residents and tourists.  

It's no secret that Greenport Village has 
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been discovered and will only grow to become 

more of a destination.  Media outlets 

continually cover the area, most recently the 

New York Times, which included Greenport in its 

roundup of places and reasons why people are 

making the North Fork their permanent home.  As 

a community, we must be doing something right.  

That being said, there is a growing concern 

among residents and tourists as well in regards 

to parking.  

I recently read a story in Suffolk Times 

about a proposal to create more time-limited 

parking in the Village.  The total, I believe, 

is around 20 spaces.  I do think this is an 

important discussion to have now, and am happy 

to hear the Board is discussing these various 

options.  I think it is also very important to 

include solutions for residents in these 

discussions as well.  

Speaking to other renters on Main Street 

and Front Street that do not have access to a 

driveway or parking spaces through our 

buildings, I have found there is a common 

concern about what we will do when the summer 

months come.  



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Flynn Stenography & Transcription Service

 (631) 727-1107

Regular Session 11/27/17  70

Many residents also work in the Village 

and there is a substantial need for long-term 

parking.  These are some of the concerns from 

fellow residents.  

Long-term parking is neither identified, 

reserved or readily accessible to residents.  

Parking is geared more toward accommodating 

tourists that are only here for a short time, 

rather than the people that live here 

year-round.  It is difficult to find long-term 

parking, and when a spot is found, it is usually 

in residential areas further away from the heart 

of the Village.  Residents on side streets in 

residential areas seem to be upset with cars 

parking in front of their homes and near their 

driveways.  When shopping elsewhere such as 

Riverhead, or loading, unloading the car, it is 

difficult when having to park further away.  

A solution proposed by many of these 

people, myself included, is to have resident 

parking stickers that would allow residents to 

park in the Village without time restrictions 

and/or central lots that are clearly marked as 

resident-only parking.  A possible location 

could be the municipal lot next to the IGA.  I 
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have noticed the parking area where the farm 

stand used to be is now vacant and people have 

been parking there.  Perhaps this could be used 

as part of a resident -- resident-designated 

lot.  

There also needs to be a solution to 

accommodate the influx of tourists.  With the 

new hotel scheduled to open next summer with 16 

rooms, plus a restaurant with no parking, there 

will be a need to have parking available for 

them as well, possibly long-term.  There are a 

couple of viable options.  

One, in the Suffolk Times article, Trustee 

Roberts mentioned a parcel on the north side of 

the railroad tracks that could possibly be 

converted into 15 spaces, which would be great.  

There's also the old turnstile that is there 

that has not been maintained, is covered with 

leaves and debris.  There may be a possibility 

to convert that space into additional parking as 

well.  

On the eastern side of the high school, 

there's a parking lot with somewhere around 100 

spaces that is vacant in the summer.  If this 

space could be leased from the school, these 
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spaces could be used as a paid parking area.  

This would bring money to the school and the 

Village.  At a modest $10 per day, or another 

price deemed appropriate by the Village, 

tourists, hotel guests and B&B guests could park 

here and take a free shuttle from that lot to 

the bus stop next to the IGA.  This could 

provide stress-free parking for visitors and 

raise a significant amount of money as well, 

covering these various costs, plus making a 

profit.  

The Village has been making many great 

improvements and I think it will only get 

better.  These solutions have proven successful 

in other towns as well, including our neighbors 

on Shelter Island that are issued parking 

permits that allow them access to more areas 

during the summer months.  I feel the solutions 

for residents are so important, as we live and 

work here year-round and keep the local economy 

going in the off season.  Solutions for tourists 

are equally important, and I think a combination 

of the two would benefit the community.  

If the Board is interested, I am happy to 

discuss this further at another time.  I 
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appreciate this opportunity to speak and what 

you are doing to better our community.  Thank 

you.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Thank you.  

MS. ALLEN:  I'm not mad at you tonight.  

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  I didn't say anything.

(Laughter)  

MS. ALLEN:  Chatty Allen, Third Street.  

Yes, we do have a parking issue.  Where the 

farmers market used to be, what is that, 20 

spots?  We got a lot of people that live in the 

downtown area.  I'm one of them, okay?  I have a 

lot where I'm supposed to park and people park 

in my spot, okay?  We deal with it.  I know what 

it's like trying to carry, as a disabled person, 

trying to carry blocks with groceries.  

A solution for a resident-only area, we 

don't have spaces large enough to figure out, 

because we're going to lose all our parking in 

the downtown area if we assign it just for 

people that live down there.  And I know it's 

being talked about, about putting more housing 

over the stores in the area, which makes the 

parking even harder.  

As far as the turnstile, yes, I had an 
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audible gasp to that.  I grew up here.  We 

cannot touch that turnstile, okay?  Go and do 

your history on it.  I'm not going to go into 

it, but that's why I had a reaction to it.  

That's a part of my history growing up here.  

The school is another hot button for me.  

There are three residential roads leading to the 

school parking lot.  I have family with small 

children that live on those roads.  I don't want 

to see traffic there going through.  And then it 

comes down to who actually is going to take care 

of that parking lot?  That parking lot is a 

mess.  Is that going to be the Village's 

responsibility now to pay for this?  Those are 

the kind of things we have to think about before 

things get thrown out there.  

Yes, we do need to come up with a 

solution, we do need to figure out better ways.  

Trying to give more of the half-hour parking for 

someone like myself to run to the drug store or 

to go to IGA, someone that's older that can't 

walk very far, having a 30-minute spot, which 

this summer seemed to have worked just on the 

few spots where it was.  You know, this just 

started, you know, a year-and-a-half ago.  It 
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takes time to put things into motion.  

Like I said, parking is a hot button 

issue.  You know, I came home from the doctors, 

I had gone shopping, someone was in my parking 

space.  I ended up parking over by IGA and 

having -- my stuff had to stay in my car until 

that night.  You know, it is a pain.  It's one 

of the drawbacks living down there, living in 

the Village, trying to find someplace to park.  

I don't know if I agree with a 

resident-only sticker or a resident-only parking 

space, because you're going to get locals who 

will be more outspoken than myself, maybe not 

here, but online, if the people that live on 

Main and Front, which I'm part of Front, get 

their own special parking area, than someone 

that lives on Fifth Street, or Sixth, and 

they're like, "Oh, the resident lot is totally 

filled, we can't park there now."  We got to 

come to a happy medium somewhere.  

Yes, I'm hoping it goes through, things 

work out with the railroad to clear some of 

that, maybe even clear more on the south side of 

the tracks.  You know, I look at that every 

morning and every afternoon when I go past three 
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times a day and say, yeah, I can see where we 

could ch, ch, ch, ch, ch, you know, and you 

start calculating the cars angled in.  You know, 

I don't know how far you could go with the 

railroad right there. But sometimes we have to 

also look at our history before we put ideas 

out.  

Thank you.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Thank you.  No, go ahead.  

MS. FRANKE:  So I just want to say -- oh, 

sorry.  I'm Kelly Franke.  Hi.  I live at 123 

Main Street in Greenport.  So that's as downtown 

as it gets.  It's on the corner of Front and 

Main.  It's traditionally known as the Mills 

Building.  And I talk to all my neighbors in my 

building and other friends I have that live in 

the Business District of Greenport, and I agree, 

we got to figure out something.  

My big thing is that I can't park on the 

street long term, I can't park at Claudio's.  

And my issue is that I keep getting tickets.  As 

much as I'm trying to be diligent about moving 

my car, it's like I don't know where to put it, 

so I often on Bay Avenue, which is fine.  

But I just think the idea of -- I just 
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would like to put in that I know that me and my 

neighbors would really be in favor of a sticker 

situation, whatever that would be, just to kind 

of say like, "Hey, please, I live here, please 

give me a little bit of courtesy," say I'm 

loading my car, or just whatever it is.  

That's it.  Yeah, sorry.  Short and sweet.   

But I just want to put in my support for some 

sort of solution for those people that live 

right in that downtown, because it's just very 

congested, and we're getting penalized.  And 

it's like I've been to -- I've had to deal with 

about like five different tickets I've gotten.  

And, you know, I'm not trying to like park there 

longer than I have to, but it just happens, and 

like I live there, so it's really hard to get 

around it.  

And I just -- I was noticing a lot of 

different articles and talk about tourists 

parking, and I just hadn't seen and heard any 

conversations even started about residents in 

downtown Greenport.  And if I missed one of 

those conversations, then I apologize.  But I 

just think that -- and, again, I know that 

you're not happy over there, but if we could 
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find a middle ground somewhere, just it would be 

great and really, really appreciated.  And thank 

you for hearing me out.  That's it.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Okay.  

MS. FRANKE:  Thank you.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Thank you.  I think it's 

very good that everybody's having the 

discussion.  We all realize there's an issue and 

a problem and we're trying to come up with 

solutions.  And everybody's input is beneficial 

to us all, and we're going to work on trying to 

do something with it, so.  

MS. DINNI GORDON:  Dinni Gordon, 152 Sixth 

Street.  This is a complete change of subject, 

and really just an announcement.  

Our little group, One Greenport, is going 

to make a contribution to the Saturday evening 

festivities, where through the restaurant, 

Tikal.  Helen, the proprietoress of Tikal is 

providing Mexican hot chocolate and bunuelos 

starting about 5 o'clock.  It sounds as though 

there may be more people than we can handle.  

But, at any rate, that's our contribution to 

this, what sounds like a wonderful event to 

introduce the holiday season.  So I just wanted 
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to announce that.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Okay.  Well, thank you 

very much for your contribution.  

MS. ELKIN:  Hi.  Bridget Elkin, 912 Main 

Street.  I will keep this short tonight, and 

maybe come back next meeting, because I know 

we've had a lot of talk.  

But in a somewhat related note to parking, 

I have seen all the wonderful work that's been 

done on the streets, and we've put a lot of 

resources towards that, and it looks really 

fantastic, and it happened pretty quickly, so 

thanks for all of that.  But a solution to 

something that doesn't require maybe as much 

resources that I and some other residents are 

concerned about is the speed limit in the 

Village.  

I -- my husband and I just purchased a 

home on the corner of Bridge and Main, so not 

too far.  And I have handouts.  You guys know 

this well, but I'll leave this with you. 

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Thank you.  

MS. ELKIN:  So this summer I did some 

conferencing with the Southold Town Police, 

because I just wanted to get an understanding of 
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whose jurisdiction that this is.  And I know 

it's a little confusing, because from basically 

the high school to where I live on Bridge and 

Main Street is the Village's -- is the Village, 

and then after that there's about .2 miles that 

is the Southold Town.  

We had an officer come and sit for a 

little while to observe.  Officer Flatley 

observed about 200 cars five times, which on 

some days could be as little as five minutes.  

So he agreed that it wasn't a big enough sample 

size.  But the point here is that most -- that a 

lot of drivers are driving about 40 miles per 

hour, sometimes faster.  

On Front Street, where like Mitchell 

Marina Park is, sometimes it's easier to control 

traffic, because we have -- you know, we put up 

those cross sides -- those crosswalk signs which 

help a lot.  And it's narrower and more 

congested, so you have to drive slower.  If you 

drove 30 past Aldo's, you'd look crazy.  Yeah, 

the speed limit is 30 miles per hour.  

So, in general, I just think that this is 

something that we could and should be supportive 

of.  And it turns out that just across the pond, 
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Sag Harbor and East Hampton were able to last 

year drop their speed limits from -- first, they 

dropped it to 25, which they saw was not very 

effective.  Twenty-five is pretty much the same 

as 30 when it comes to making a change in a 

community.  And they worked with their 

Assemblyman and Senator LaValle to lower it to 

20.  And I've spoken to both Boards, and waiting 

to hear back from the Assemblyman and what we 

can do, and they seem open to helping us.  

And it turns out that we have to -- what 

they had to do is name certain streets that 

would, we feel as a Village, benefit from 

lowering the speed limit.  Of course, Main and 

Front seem like the obvious ones.  I'll leave it 

up to you guys to decide if there's other ones 

that should change with them.  

But, again, I think I, for one, can say 

that there are times when I'm pulling out of my 

driveway or walking, and this is a walking 

village that we want to preserve, or Historic -- 

the Historic Society wants to preserve people -- 

what we're looking at.  It's good for businesses 

if we slow down a little bit.  

And just to put it in perspective, 
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changing it from 30 to 20, if someone's 

commuting from, let's say, the ferry, getting 

off the ferry at Shelter Island down to 48, if 

you're going 30 versus 20, that's just a minute 

slower in that one-mile commute.  So I think, 

you know, it's not too much to ask for those 

that are commuting.  I know some people that do 

use it for those purposes.  But, at the end of 

the day, we have to make a decision whether we 

want to be throughfare or if we want to be a 

walking village and kind of preserve that 

character.  

So, again, I don't want to take up too 

much time, but I just kind of wanted to open it 

for discussion, and, hopefully, we can have 

conversations down the line.  Thank you. 

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Thank you.  

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  By the way, I do want to 

mention also that I believe New York City has 

lowered their speed limit to 25 now, too.  

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  They did.  

MS. ELKIN:  That was actually the 

catalyst, yes.  

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  So, I mean, you know, I 

don't know how they enforce it, but they have 
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gone that direction for pedestrian safety.  

So -- 

MS. ELKIN:  And that was the catalyst, 

according to Assemblyman Thiele, who is the 

district in Sag Harbor and East Hampton, said 

that was really what started their conversations 

around it, and they have seen tremendous -- just 

everything.  All the villages are very happy 

over there after the change, so.  

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Thanks for your comments.

MS. ELKIN:  Yeah.  

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  I appreciate it.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Thank you.  

MS. LINDA GORDON:  Good evening.  Linda 

Gordon, 218 Fifth Street.  

I just wanted to -- I know you said that 

next month you'll have more on the rental law.  

But I hope you do pass it, because it's like way 

overdue.  And there was a -- I just wanted to 

read this one thing.  It was a suggestion made 

by a Trustee.  

"The existing Village Code should be 

tweaked to provide a process that would allow 

the Village to inspect rental apartments.  

Legally, the Village can't do that without an 
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owner's permission, but if owners had to agree 

to inspections in order to obtain permits for 

their accessory apartments, better enforcement 

might follow."  

That was a quote by -- from Trustee 

Phillips, and that was 2010.  So -- 

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Linda, I'm sorry. 

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Okay.  

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  You realize last month 

we passed the rental permit law.  

MS. LINDA GORDON:  You did?  

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Yes, ma'am.  

MS. LINDA GORDON:  Okay.  I was away.  

(Laughter)  

MS. LINDA GORDON:  Okay.  So now maybe we 

can -- then maybe then we can move on to the 

enforcement, as this -- and that's where I was 

going with mostly, was that I'd like -- on the 

top of this article, "Village Needs Enforcement, 

Not New Codes," and that was -- it's always been 

my concern, is in terms of codes being enforced.  

Like who's going to enforce the new rental law?  

Who's in charge?  Who's going to do this?  I 

mean, is it the -- 

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Just -- 
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MS. LINDA GORDON:  -- the enforcer, the 

enforcement?  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Right.  Well, we have the 

Building Inspector that we have now, we have a 

Code Enforcement Officer part-time, and we just 

brought on a new person that's going to be 

training to be a Code Enforcement Officer.  So 

we'll have 2 1/2 people that will be doing that.  

Just to clarify, have we heard back from 

the State on the adoption of that law?  Have 

they accepted that and gotten a number on it 

yet?  

MR. PALLAS:  Yeah.  

CLERK PIRILLO:  I believe so, yes, but 

I'll double-check that.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Okay.  So once we pass a 

resolution here, we pass a law, then it goes to 

the State for them to certify it, and that 

usually takes three to four weeks for them to 

get back to us saying now it is in effect, and 

then we could start enforcing it.  And I believe 

we just learned this past week that we did get 

that back from the State, so now we'll ramp up 

and start doing the inspections and sending 

letters out.  
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MS. LINDA GORDON:  Okay.  And I wanted to 

ask if there's any movement on accessory 

buildings becoming rental options, since we're 

-- the Village has limited rentals.  I know that 

there -- they already exist.  And I just 

wondered if this was something that the Trustees 

would be looking at, and possibly discussing or 

putting into -- into motion, because they do 

exist, and they don't have permits.  And -- 

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Right.  At this time right 

now, we have no -- nothing in the plans on that, 

but it's something that can be discussed in the 

future.  

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  I'm sorry, Mr. Mayor, 

but didn't -- we got a draft of a law for 

waterfront commercial accessory.  Where is that?  

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  No, we didn't.

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Which was that, that's -- 

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  It was -- the Board was 

sent a draft of a potential law for waterfront 

commercial accessory apartments, right, changing 

-- am I making this up?  I don't think so.  I'm 

sure -- 

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Are you talking about 

separate buildings or apartments?  
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MS. LINDA GORDON:  Separate buildings.  

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Separate buildings like 

sheds and -- 

MS. LINDA GORDON:  Right, like -- 

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Yeah.  

MS. LINDA GORDON:  Yes.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Converting your garage 

into an apartment, or whatever. 

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  No. 

MS. LINDA GORDON:  Converting garages 

or -- 

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Okay.  We did not 

receive a law for that, but we did get something 

about -- 

MR. PROKOP:  No, but the proposal -- 

MS. LINDA GORDON:  I think there is 

something in -- I think a commercial building 

has something like that.  

MR. PROKOP:  Yeah, multiple-family.  

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  That's the multi-family 

MR. PALLAS:  Part of the multi-family.  

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Right, okay.  Yes, thank 

you.   

MAYOR HUBBARD:  That's multi-family 

dwelling.  That's Section 9 and Section 18 of 
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Chapter 150 Zoning. 

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Right, okay.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  That's -- 

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  That we're working on 

for next month.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Yes.  

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Got it.  

MS. LINDA GORDON:  All right.  I just 

would like you to maybe look at that, and maybe 

we'd have more space, provide more space for the 

citizens.  Thank you.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Thank you.  

MR. DINIZIO:  Hi, good evening.  It's Jim 

Dinizio.  I'm in unincorporated Village of 

Greenport.  

I'm here tonight because I was here a few 

weeks ago and I wanted to apologize for the way 

I acted.  I let my emotions get way out of hand.  

And for any discomfort that I caused any of you, 

I sincerely apologize.  

And to you, Mr. Roberts, you handled it 

like a champion, quite honestly, and I don't 

think that I would have been able to muster the 

ability that you showed that night. So with 

that all said, I apologize.  
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I'd like to also -- as you know I ran for 

Councilman and I won, so I'm here for another 

four years -- offer that perhaps I come every 

month, or at least be at your call on a work 

session maybe once a month to discuss what we 

have discussed at our Boards, so that we could 

get a little bit more communication going.  

I think the meeting with -- I had meetings 

with Mr. Roberts, you know, and other people.  

It doesn't seem to work out.  I think if we have 

discussions in public, with the public, they can 

understand what we're discussing, and, also, it 

keeps us a little bit more on our toes.  

There are plenty of things that the Town 

and the Village need to work on, you know, not 

the least of which, in my opinion, is our Police 

Force and getting them accredited.  I've been 

walking around, I've been saying this for the 

past six months.  I know it's really dull stuff, 

but it's important.  And I would hope -- I'm 

kind of hoping that you can help me in that 

respect.  Probably not going to happen this year 

because it's not in the budget, not for lack of 

trying, but more for lack of interest.  But if 

we're going to have our Police Officers out 
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there knocking on doors in the middle of the 

night, with people on the other side yelling and 

screaming or hollering, we want to make sure 

that they have the proper tools to do that job.  

So I pledge that I'll come here once a 

month and, you know, whatever we have I'll bring 

to you.  Certainly, you're more than welcome to 

call me any time, and let's see if we can get 

this thing going.  

So, again, I apologize, and thank you very 

much for listening to me.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Anybody else wish to 

address the Board?  

(No Response) 

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Okay.  At this time, we'll 

move on to our regular agenda.  

I'll offer RESOLUTION #11-2017-1, 

RESOLUTION adopting the November 2017 agenda as 

printed.  So moved.  

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Second.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  All in favor?  

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Aye.

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Aye.
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MAYOR HUBBARD:  Aye.

Opposed?

(No Response) 

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Motion carried.  

I'll ask Trustee Roberts to -- 

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  RESOLUTION #11-2017-2,

RESOLUTION accepting the monthly reports of the 

Greenport Fire Department, Village 

Administrator, Village Treasurer, Village Clerk, 

Village Attorney, Mayor and Board of Trustees.  

So moved.  

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Second.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  All in favor?

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Aye.

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Aye.

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Aye.

Opposed?

(No Response)

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Motion carried.  

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  RESOLUTION #11-2017-3,

RESOLUTION authorizing the attendance of Trustee 

Julia Robins and Village Administrator Paul 

Pallas at the NYAPP Annual Winter Conference on 
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January 17th and 18th, 2017.  I think that would 

be 2018.  

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  I believe so.

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Yes, it would be. 

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Yes.  

CLERK PIRILLO:  Yes.

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  January 17th and 18th, 

2018 in Albany, New York, at a conference fee of 

$235.00 per person and a room rate of $149.00 

per night per person, plus all applicable travel 

and meal costs, to be expensed from account 

number E.0782.000 (Management Services).  So 

moved.  

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Second.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  All in favor?

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Aye.

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Aye.

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Aye.

Opposed?

(No Response)

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Motion carried. 

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Resolution 

#11-2017-4, 
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RESOLUTION authorizing the issuance of a Request 

for Proposals for Architectural/Engineering 

Design Bidding and Construction Administration 

and Inspection Services related to the Village 

of Greenport Micro Grid project, and direct 

Clerk Pirillo to notice the Request for 

Proposals accordingly.  So moved.  

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Second.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  All in favor?

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Aye.

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Aye.

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Aye.

Opposed?

(No Response)

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Motion carried.  

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  RESOLUTION #11-2017-5, 

RESOLUTION whereby the Board of Trustees of the 

Village of Greenport hereby ratifies and 

approves a memorandum of agreement with the 

Civil Service Employees Association, Inc., Local 

1000, AFSCME, AFL-CIO, Village of Greenport Unit 

regarding the terms of a collective bargaining 

agreement covering the period of June 1st, 2017 
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through May 31st, 2021.  So moved.  

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Second, and discussion.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Sure.  

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  I just want to briefly 

say we have some really great people who work 

for this Village.  And I especially want to 

thank Deputy Mayor Martilotta, and the folks on 

the Union side, like Doug Jacobs, and Derryl 

Baumer and Pete Manwaring for -- this was headed 

down a bad path, and I want to thank you guys 

for taking it off that bad path, sitting down, 

having a cup of coffee and figuring it out the 

way Greenporters do.  So great job, and I'm 

really glad we're doing this.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Any other discussion?  

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  I think Trustee Roberts 

should also, or we also should acknowledge that 

Village Administrator Pallas had a major hand in 

helping the sides come to a mutual agreement, 

along with our Village Labor Attorney -- 

CLERK PIRILLO:  Lamb and Barnosky.  

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  -- Lamb and Barnosky.  

I think they also worked very hard on creating 

an agreement that for the first time since I -- 

I'm on my third term.  And I'm sure the Mayor 
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will agree with me, that this was the quickest 

I've seen it got accomplished.  

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  In fairness -- 

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Good job by all.  

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  -- the Attorney was 

pushing us toward mediation, so -- and great 

job, Paul.  Thank you.  I'm sorry I left you 

out.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Okay.  Any other 

discussion?  

(No Response) 

MAYOR HUBBARD:  All in favor?

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Aye.

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Aye.

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Aye.

Opposed?

(No Response)

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Motion carried. 

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  RESOLUTION #11-2017-6, 

RESOLUTION authorizing Treasurer Brandt to 

perform attached Budget Amendment #3755, to fund 

the repair of the Railroad Dock, and directing 

that Budget Transfer #3755 be included as part 
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of the formal meeting minutes of the November 

27, 2017 regular meeting of the Board of 

Trustees.  So moved.  

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Second.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  All in favor?

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Aye.

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Aye.

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Aye.

Opposed?

(No Response)

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Motion carried. 

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  RESOLUTION #11-2017-7, 

RESOLUTION authorizing Treasurer Brandt to 

perform attached Budget Amendment #3756, to fund 

the inspection and repair of the Radio Tower, 

and directing that Budget Transfer #3756 be 

included as part of the formal meeting minutes 

for the November 27, 2017 regular meeting of the 

Board of Trustees.  So moved.  

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Second.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  All in favor?

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Aye.

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Aye.
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TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Aye.

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Aye.

Opposed?

(No Response)

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Motion carried. 

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  RESOLUTION 

#11-2017-8, 

RESOLUTION authorizing Mayor Hubbard to execute 

the attached Third Party Custodian Agreement 

between the Village of Greenport, People's Bank 

and the Bank of New York Mellon.  So moved.  

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Second.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  All in favor?

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Aye.

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Aye.

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Aye.

Opposed?

(No Response)

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Motion carried. 

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  RESOLUTION #11-2017-9, 

RESOLUTION authorizing the issuance of a check 

made payable to Paul Pallas as Village 
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Administrator, in the amount of $1,000.00, to be 

used to set up the required cash drawer and 

banks for the operation of the Village of 

Greenport ice skating rink.  So moved.  

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Second.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  All in favor?

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Aye.

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Aye.

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Aye.

Opposed?

(No Response)

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Motion carried. 

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Let the skating begin.  

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Yes.  RESOLUTION 

#11-2017-10, RESOLUTION approving the Public 

Assembly Permit Application submitted by United 

States Power Squadron District 3 for the use of 

a portion of Mitchell Park, from 9 a.m. through 

11 p.m. from July 26, 2018 through July 29, 2018 

for the annual District 3 Rendezvous.  So moved.  

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Second.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  All in favor?

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Aye.
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TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Aye.

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Aye.

Opposed?

(No Response)

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Motion carried. 

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  RESOLUTION #11-2017-11, 

RESOLUTION authorizing Clerk Pirillo and 

Treasurer Brandt to attend the New York State 

Government Finance Officers' Association Long  

Island Holiday Seminar from 1:00 p.m. through 

6:00 p.m. on November 30th, 2017 at The Fox 

Hollow in Woodbury, New York.  The $85 per 

person fee, plus applicable mileage costs, will 

be expensed from account numbers A.1325.004 

(Treasurer Contractual Expense) and A.1410.004 

(Clerk Contractual Expense).  So moved.  

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Second.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  All in favor?

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Aye.

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Aye.

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Aye.
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Opposed?

(No Response)

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Motion carried. 

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  RESOLUTION 

#11-2017-12, RESOLUTION hiring Andrea Taglieri 

as a full-time Code Enforcement Officer for the 

Village of Greenport, at a pay rate of $18.00 

per hour, effective December 11, 2017.  All 

health insurance and other full-time employment 

benefit provisions specified in the current 

contract between the Village of Greenport and 

CSEA Local 1000 apply to this hiring, as does 

the standard twenty-six week Suffolk County 

Civil Service probationary period.  So moved.  

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Second.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  All in favor?

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Aye.

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Aye.

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Aye.

Opposed?

(No Response)

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Motion carried. 

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  RESOLUTION #11-2017-13,  
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RESOLUTION approving the attached Standard Work 

Day and reporting Resolution Form #RS 2417-A and 

Form #RS 2419, and directing Clerk Pirillo to 

post the Standard Work Day and Reporting 

Resolution on the official Village of Greenport 

website for a minimum of thirty (30) days.  So 

moved.  

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Second.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  All in favor?

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Aye.

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Aye.

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Aye.

Opposed?

(No Response)

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Motion carried. 

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  RESOLUTION #11-2017-14, 

RESOLUTION approving the attached 

Inter-Municipal Agreement between the Village of 

Greenport and the Town of Southold, with a term 

of five (5) years, as to the sharing of 

information concerning certain property records 

regarding assessments and property information 

of properties that are located within the Town 
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of Southold in the territory of the Village of 

Greenport.  So moved.  

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Second.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  All in favor?

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Aye.

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Aye.

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Aye.

Opposed?

(No Response)

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Motion carried. 

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  RESOLUTION #11-2017-15, 

RESOLUTION approving the attached contract 

between the Village of Greenport and the 

Greenport Open Hockey League for the use of the 

Village of Greenport Ice Skating Rink for the 

2017/2018 season.  So moved.  

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Second.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  All in favor?

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Aye.

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Aye.

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Aye.
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Opposed?

(No Response)

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Motion carried. 

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  RESOLUTION 

#11-2017-16, RESOLUTION approving the attached 

contract between the Village of Greenport and -- 

between the Village of Greenport and the 

Greenport Hockey Club for the use of the Village 

of Greenport Ice Skating Rink for the 2017/2018 

season.  So moved.  

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Second.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  All in favor?

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Aye.

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Aye.

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Aye.

Opposed?

(No Response)

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Motion carried. 

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  RESOLUTION #11-2017-17, 

RESOLUTION authorizing the annual solicitation 

of bids for the delivery of diesel fuel to 

various locations throughout the Village of 

Greenport, and directing Clerk Pirillo to notice 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Flynn Stenography & Transcription Service

 (631) 727-1107

Regular Session 11/27/17  104

the solicitation of bids accordingly.  So moved.  

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Second.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  All in favor?

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Aye.

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Aye.

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Aye.

Opposed?

(No Response)

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Motion carried. 

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  RESOLUTION #11-2017-18, 

RESOLUTION authorizing the annual solicitation 

of bids for the delivery of No. 2 heating oil to 

various locations throughout the Village of 

Greenport, and directing Clerk Pirillo to notice 

the solicitation of bids accordingly.  So moved.  

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Second.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  All in favor?  

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Aye.

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Aye.

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Aye.

Opposed?
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(No Response)

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Motion carried. 

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  RESOLUTION #11-2017-19, 

RESOLUTION authorizing the annual solicitation 

of bids for the delivery of unleaded (87 octane) 

gasoline to various locations throughout the 

Village of Greenport, and directing Clerk 

Pirillo to notice the solicitation of bids 

accordingly.  So moved.  

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Second.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  All in favor?

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Aye.

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Aye.

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Aye.

Opposed?

(No Response)

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Motion carried. 

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  RESOLUTION 

#11-2017-20, RESOLUTION authorizing the 

Greenport Tree Committee to solicit bids for:  

The removal of specified Village trees, the 

removal and grinding of tree stumps, and the 

pruning of specified Village trees:  And further 
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directing Clerk Pirillo to notice the bid 

accordingly.  So moved.  

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Second.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  All in favor?

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Aye.

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Aye.

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Aye.

Opposed?

(No Response)

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Motion carried. 

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  RESOLUTION #11-2017-21, 

RESOLUTION approving the attached SEQRA 

resolution regarding the abandonment of a 

portion of Johnson Court in the Village of 

Greenport.  So moved.  

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Second.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  All in favor?

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Aye.

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Aye.

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Aye.

Opposed?
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(No Response)

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Motion carried. 

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  RESOLUTION #11-2017-22, 

RESOLUTION approving the attached resolution 

regarding the abandonment of a portion of 

Johnson Court in the Village of Greenport.  So 

moved.  

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Second.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  All in favor?

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Aye.

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Aye.

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Aye.

Opposed?

(No Response)

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Motion carried. 

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  RESOLUTION #11-2017-23, 

RESOLUTION scheduling a public hearing for 

December 28, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. at the Third 

Street Fire Station, Third and South Streets, 

Greenport, NY 11944 regarding a proposed 

amendment to Chapter 132 (Vehicles and Traffic), 

Section 54 (Schedule XVI - Limited Time Parking) 

of the Village of Greenport Code to create 
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additional limited time parking spots in the IGA 

municipal lot, and directing Clerk Pirillo to 

notice the public hearing accordingly.  So 

moved.  

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Second.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  All in favor?

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Aye.

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Aye.

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Aye.

Opposed?

(No Response)

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Motion carried. 

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Resolution 

#11-2017-24, RESOLUTION scheduling a public 

hearing for December 28, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. at 

the Third Street Fire Station, Third and South 

Streets, Greenport, NY, 11944 regarding a 

proposed amendment to Chapter 88 (Noise) of the 

Village of Greenport Code to exclude the use of 

gas powered leaf blowers from Memorial Day 

through Labor Day, and directing Clerk Pirillo 

to notice the public hearing accordingly.  So 

moved.  
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TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Second.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  All in favor?

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Aye.

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Aye.

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Aye.

Opposed?

(No Response)

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Motion carried. 

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Resolution #11-2017-25, 

RESOLUTION approving an increase of 15% of 

annual salary for the following management-level 

employees:  Village Treasurer, Village Deputy 

Treasurer, Village Clerk, and the Village Deputy 

Clerk, effective November 29th, 2017.  So moved.  

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Second.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  All in favor?

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Aye.

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Aye.

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Aye.

Opposed?

(No Response)
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MAYOR HUBBARD:  Motion carried. 

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  RESOLUTION #11-2017-26, 

RESOLUTION approving all checks per the Voucher 

Summary Report dated November 17th, 2017, in the 

total amount of $1,810,223.20 consisting of:

o  All regular checks in the amount of 

$1,796,414.56, and

o  All prepaid checks (including wire 

transfers) in the amount of $13,808.64. 

So moved.  

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Second.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  All in favor?

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Aye.

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Aye.

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Aye.

Opposed?

(No Response)

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Motion carried. 

Okay.  I just want to thank everybody for 

coming.  And please join us on Saturday, 

5 o'clock, for the parade, tree lighting, 

everything we've got going on.  It will be a fun 

day.  Free carousel rides, and cookies and hot 
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chocolate.  And I don't know how you pronounce 

what you were bringing, Dinni, but -- 

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Go to Tikal.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  -- everything that's 

included.  

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Go to Tikal.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Okay.  All right.  I'll 

offer a motion to adjourn at 8:58.  

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Second.  

MAYOR HUBBARD:  All in favor?

TRUSTEE MARTILOTTA:  Aye.

TRUSTEE PHILLIPS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBERTS:  Aye.

TRUSTEE ROBINS:  Aye.

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Aye.

Opposed?

(No Response)

MAYOR HUBBARD:  Motion carried.  We're 

adjourned.  Thank you.

(The meeting was adjourned at 8:58 p.m.)  
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C E R T I F I C A T I O N

STATE OF NEW YORK  )

     ) SS:

COUNTY OF SUFFOLK  )

      I, LUCIA BRAATEN, a Court Reporter and 

Notary Public for and within the State of New 

York, do hereby certify:  

THAT, the above and foregoing contains a 

true and correct transcription of the 

proceedings taken on November 27, 2017.

      I further certify that I am not related to 

any of the parties to this action by blood or 

marriage, and that I am in no way interested in 

the outcome of this matter.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my 

hand this 9th day of December, 2017.

      

____________________
        Lucia Braaten 

           Lucia Braaten
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